I. SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT 


The trial court applied the wrong legal standard when it detennined 

whether the default nonparental custody decree entered by Ms. Clawson 

was void for lack of jurisdiction, and the trial court improperly evaluated 

the evidence presented to it on that subject. The trial court violated Mr. 

Marx' constitutional rights by declining to follow this Court's ruling in 

Link v. Link, 165 Wn. App. 268, 268 P .3d. 963 (2011). The trial court 

further violated due process when it restricted Mr. Marx' parental rights 

by default without first establishing whether he was, in fact, a legal parent. 

II. ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR 

The trial court erred when it: 

(a) 	 declined to rule on Mr. Marx's Motion to Strike (l 
RP 3); 

(b) 	 denied Mr. Marx's Motion to Vacate (CP 133-34); 

(c) 	 denied Mr. Marx' Motion for Reconsideration on 
the trial court's Order Denying Motion to Vacate 
(CP 206-210); 

(d) 	 detennined that Mr. Marx was properly served 
without an evidentiary hearing (CP 133, 207); 

(e) 	 when it equated Mr. Marx' knowledge that a 
previous girlfriend had given birth ("he knew of 
Kaitlyn's existence") and that the girlfriend's 
mother believed him to be the father to proper 
notice of a nonparental custody action or that such 
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knowledge cured improper notice of a nonparental 
custody action (CP 134, 209; 1 RP 17-191

); 

(t) 	 when it determined that Mr. Marx had knowledge 
that he "was the named father" of Kait1yn (CP 134, 
209; 1 RP 17-19); 

(g) 	 when it determined that Mr. Marx' knowledge that 
he was the "named father" ofa child is equivalent to 
proper notice of a nonparental custody action 
regarding that child or that such knowledge would 
cure improper notice of a nonparental custody 
action (CP 134, 209; 1 RP 17-19); 

(h) 	 when it concluded that a parent's subjective belief 
that he is or may be a parent or a parent's 
knowledge that another individual believes or may 
believe he is a parent is equivalent to the 
establishment of paternity in fact (CP 134, 206-09; 
1 RP 17-19); 

(i) 	 when it relied on the records of an independent 
dependency proceeding (Case #1 0-7 -01826-6), 
which contained information that had never been 
served on Mr. Marx and was not presented to the 
Court or contained in the case file in order to 
addressed whether Mr. Marx had "knowledge of 
Kaitlyn's existence, and that he had been named the 
father and whether he had notice" (CP 207); 

(j) 	 when it entered the Order re Adequate Cause 
finding that Mr. Marx had failed to establish 
adequate cause for a major modification (CP 135
37); 

(k) 	 when it concluded that Mr. Marx was obligated to 
seek out more information as a result of defective 

I The Verbatim Report of Proceedings that references the hearing on May 5, 2014 is 
designated as Volume I, and the Verbatim Report of Proceedings that references the 
hearings on May 6, 2014 and June 5, 2014 is designated as Volume 2. 
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service in order to determine whether or not a 
proceeding might apply to him (2 RP 23·24); 

(1) 	 when it applied RCW 26.09.260(1) and (2) in order 
restrict Mr. Marx' parental rights pursuant to a 
default nonparental custody decree when there had 
never been a hearing on the merits (CP 135·37,200· 
01; 2 RP 21·28); 

(m) 	 when it denied Mr. Marx' Motion to Revise 
Commissioner's Ruling (CP 200·201); and 

(n) 	 when it declined to rule on whether parentage must 
be established before parental rights can be 
restricted pursuant to a default nonparental custody 
proceeding (2 RP 29·43). 

III. ISSUES PRESENTED 

A) Whether the trial court abused its discretion when it applied the wrong 

legal standard to deny Mr. Marx' motion to vacate the default 

nonparental custody decree and when it made determinations on the 

credibility of the witnesses without an evidentiary hearing. 

B) 	Whether the trial court violated Mr. Marx' constitutional parental 

rights when it denied his motion for adequate cause to modify the 

default nonparental residential schedule based on a strict application of 

RCW 26.09.260 (1) and (2). 

C) Whether the trial court violated Mr. Marx' due process rights when it 

entered a default nonparental custody decree restricting parental rights 

that had never been established. 
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IV. STATEMENT OF THE CASE 


Kaitlyn Rose Hunter was born to Janelle Hunter with 

methamphetamine in her system, and as a result, the Department of Social 

and Health Services removed Kaitlyn from Ms. Hunter's care. (CP 10, 

86.) Kaitlyn was placed with her maternal grandmother, Debra Clawson. 

(CP 86.) It is undisputed that in that proceeding, Ms. Hunter alleged that 

three men, including Mr. Marx, could potentially be Kaitlyn's father. (CP 

68.) 

On August 31, 2010, the State of Washington initiated a dependency 

action for Kaitlyn Hunter (Spokane County Cause Number 10-7-01826-6). 

(CP 68.) It is undisputed that service of that proceeding was never 

effectuated on Mr. Marx, and the case was ultimately dismissed. (CP 68.) 

On January 10, 2011, Ms. Clawson initiated a nonparental custody 

action. (CP 1.) In her petition, Ms. Clawson identified Mr. Marx as the 

"possible father" to Kaitlyn. (CP 4, 7.) Ms. Clawson's petition stated that 

parental visitation should be limited because "William F. Marx has 

engaged in the conduct which follows: Willful abandonment that 

continues for an extended prior of time or substantial refusal to perform 

parenting functions." (CP 9.) Ms. Clawson also checked the box next to a 

section entitled "other" wherein she wrote: "He's never had contact with 

the child." (CP 9.) At that time, Kaitlyn was three months old. (CP 4.) 
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In Section 1.14 of the petition, Ms. Clawson stated that: "The requests 

made in this petition are in the best interests of the children because: I 

think being placed with family is better then being placed in a foster 

home." (CP lO.) 

Ms. Clawson did not sign the section of the petition that required her 

to declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the state of 

Washington that the foregoing contents of her petition were true and 

correct. (CP 12.) 

On the same date, Ms. Clawson filed her Proposed Residential 

Schedule, which alleged: "William F. Marx's residential time with the 

children shall be limited or restrained completely because William F. 

Marx has engaged in the conduct which follows: Willful abandonment that 

continues for an extended period of time or substantial refusal to perform 

parenting functions.,,2 Ms. Clawson also checked the box that said "other" 

and wrote: "Conviction of Assault of Child 3rd Degree." 

On January 11, 2011, Ms. Clawson filed a Return ofService alleging 

that Mr. Marx had received copies of the summons, petition, and her 

proposed residential schedule. (CP 14, 58.) The Return of Service 

2 The Residential Schedule was not included in the Designation of Clerk's Papers in 
error. It has been designated in the Supplemental Designation of Clerk's Papers filed 
simultaneously with this brief. 

Appellant's Brief - Page 5 THE LA W OFFICE OF JULIE C. WATTS, PLLC 
505 W. Riverside A ve., Suite 400 

Spokane, WA 99201 
(509) 703-4725 



appears to have been filled out by Ms. Clawson and signed by her son, 

Corey Clawson. (CP 14,58.) 

Exactly twenty (20) days later, on February 3, 2011, Ms. Clawson 

filed her Motion and Declaration for Default. (CP 16-19.) An Order on 

Motion for Default was signed and entered by Commissioner Rachelle 

Anderson on the same day. (CP 20-22.) 

Commissioner Anderson also signed and entered Findings ofFact and 

Conclusions of Law. (CP 27-34.) This document made findings and 

conclusions different from those alleged in the Petition for Nonparental 

Custody. (CP 1-15, 27-34.) In the Findings ofFact and Conclusions of 

Law, Ms. Clawson stated not what she had said in her petition about her 

belief that it was it was better for Kaitlyn to be with family than in a foster 

horne, but that "[n]either parent is a suitable custodian for the child(ren), 

because: [bloth parents failed to meet minimal standards of care for 

Kaitlyn and failed to complete services." (CP 30.) 

Commissioner Anderson also signed a Nonparental Custody Decree, 

which stated that visitation shall be as set forth in the Residential Schedule 

signed by the court on January 10, 2011; however no Residential Schedule 

had ever been signed by the court on that date or ever. (CP 38.) 
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On October 10,2013, Mr. Marx's paternity of Kaitlyn was established 

through genetic testing in a paternity proceeding (Spokane County Cause 

Number 13-5-00414-9). (CP 68.) 

After learning that he was Kaitlyn's father, Mr. Marx then began 

inquiring about her welfare, visiting agency offices and the courthouse and 

filling out paperwork until he was able to obtain Ms. Clawson's address. 

(CP 59.) He immediately sent a certified letter to Ms. Clawson requesting 

visitation with Kaitlyn. Id She ignored the notice and the letter was 

never picked up. Id He sent a second letter, with a return receipt, and, at 

the beginning ofNovember 2013, Ms. Clawson contacted him. !d. 

Mr. Marx began visitation with Kaitlyn on November 2, 2013. (CP 

59.) That visit went well, and Kaitlyn began to have regular visitation 

with Mr. Marx, his son (and Kaitlyn's half-brother), Jaidin, as well as Mr. 

Marx's girlfriend and her children. (CP 60.) Mr. Marx and Kaitlyn had 

visits on November 4, 11, 14,23, and 29, as well as on December 5,8, 17, 

23, 25, 26, and 31. (CP 60.) Mr. Marx had overnight visits with Kaitlyn 

on January 4 and 11. (CP 62.) He then began having longer visits over 

weekends, beginning with January 17-19,24-26, and January 31 through 

February 2. (CP 62-63.) On Thursday, February 6, Ms. Clawson texted 

Mr. Marx to let him know that Kaitlyn would not be visiting him over the 

weekend and that Ms. Clawson had been "advised" to stick to supervised 
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visits. (CP 63.) Ms. Clawson texted Mr. Marx on February 19, and told 

him that he could visit Kaitlyn on Saturday at McDonalds. (CP 63.) Mr. 

Marx went to McDonalds on February 22 to visit with Kaitlyn. (CP 63.) 

Mr. Marx testified that he felt Ms. Clawson actively interfered with the 

visit and encouraged Kaitlyn to fear him. (CP 63.) 

Shortly thereafter, on April 4, 2014, Mr. Marx filed a Summons and 

Petition for Modification of Custody Decree/Parenting Plan/Residential 

Schedule, as well as a motion to vacate the nonparental custody decree, 

entered in 2011. (CP 43-51, 67-71.) The petition alleged that Ms. 

Clawson's Nonparental Custody Decree had been obtained without proper 

service and without establishing whether Mr. Marx was actually a parent. 

(CP 47-48.) The petition requested a major modification under RCW 

26.09.260(1) and (2). (CP 47-48.) It also requested, in the alternative, a 

minor modification pursuant to RCW 26.09.260(5)(c), (7), (9). (CP 48.) 

In his declaration, Mr. Marx testified that he had never been properly 

served and had been unaware that he was Kaitlyn's father. (CP 57.) He 

testified that he and Ms. Hunter had a brief fling from just before 

Christmas 2009 until just after New Year's in 2010. (CP 58.) During this 

time period, he obtained information that led him to believe that she was 

doing drugs and had had relations with other men, which ended their brief 

relationship. (CP 58.) After they broke up, he heard rumors that Ms. 
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Hunter was pregnant, but she never contacted him or informed him that he 

was the father. (CP 58.) He had heard that she was sexually involved 

with three other people during their brief relationship and believed that 

Ms. Hunter had already been pregnant during his relationship with her. 

(CP 58.) 

He testified that sometime in January, Ms. Hunter's brother, Corey 

Clawson, had come to his home and handed him some papers at his front 

door. (CP 58.) He stated that he received a single packet of a few hand

written papers stapled together, and that there had been no summons or 

case number, and that the paperwork was poorly copied with faded and 

whited-out parts. (CP 58.) (In fact, the original petition contained in the 

file of the Clerk of Court and provided to this Court in the Clerk's Papers 

on appeal also contains some whited-out sections, which appear to conceal 

a third name between that of Janelle Hunter and William Marx. See CP 3

13.) Mr. Marx testified that he didn't understand what the paperwork 

meant or that any response was expected. (CP. 58.) Mr. Marx testified 

that he was never properly notified that he was the father of Kaitlyn until 

July of 2013, when he received a letter from the State of Washington 

requesting that he take a paternity test, which he immediately did. (CP 

59.) Paternity was established, and Mr. Marx learned, for the first time, 

that he was, in fact, Kaidyn's father. (CP 59.) 
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MOTION FOR ADEQUATE CAUSE: Mr. Marx' Motion for 

Adequate Cause, was set for hearing before Commissioner Anderson. (CP 

135-37; 2 RP 5-28.) Commissioner Anderson found no adequate cause for 

a major modification, but set the matter for trial on a minor modification, 

and entered a temporary order awarding limited visitation to Mr. Marx, 

stating that the matter turned on RCW 26.09.260: 

But from a procedural standpoint, what I have before me is 
a case where I have a decree of nonparental custody action 
with a parenting plan that's been referenced and 
incorporated as far as final decree in a custody case. When 
I looked at modification of that decree, it's very clear that 
the standard I look at is the same standard as if I were being 
asked to find adequate cause with regard to a parenting plan 
entered in a divorce action or legal separation. It's guided 
by RCW 26.09.260 and it talks about the requisite showing 
you need to make to modifY a parenting plan. And under 
the statute it indicates that the court shall not modifY a 
parenting plan unless it finds that there has been a 
substantial change in circumstances, and that the child's 
present environment is detrimental to the child's physical, 
mental, or emotional health and harm likely to be caused by 
a change in environment is outweighed by the advantage to 
the change to the child. 

(2 RP 21-22.) 

But when I look back to that threshold issue of adequate 
cause for a major modification, the moving party, and 
that's in this case Mr. Marx, would have to establish, for 
me to grant that adequate cause that there is some 
detrimental environment going on in grandma's household, 
and that's not the case. I don't have enough information to 
lead me to that big jump. The child may be having some 
difficulty in her behaviors as a result of having a new 
person introduced to her life, and I think that's to be 
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expected at age three. She's resided with Ms. Clawson for 
her whole life, so that is the primary bond, primary 
attachment. So there are some times, some issues with 
regard to separation anxiety when you're introducing 
parent's visitation to kind of interfere with that. But does it 
rise to the level of the detrimental environment? It doesn't 
in this particular case. So I won't be finding adequate 
cause for a major modification. 

(2 RP 25-26.) 

Mr. Marx moved to revise the commissioner's order before the 

Honorable Tari Eitzen. (CP 146-149.) He argued that the commissioner's 

ruling on adequate cause violated his constitutional rights, citing Link v. 

Link, 165 Wn. App. 268, 268 P.3d. 963 (2011), a case in which this Court 

(Washington Court of Appeals, Div. III) held that in a nonparental custody 

action, a parent's constitutional rights are ordinarily highly protected in 

the initial custody action if it is contested, but where a parent's 

constitutional rights are not taken into account or protected in the initial 

custody action, they must be recognized in the modification proceeding. 

Link at 283. In Link, this Court held that where the non-parent has never 

demonstrated that the parent was unfit or that placing the child with the 

parent would result in actual detriment to the child's growth and 

development, the modification standards and process under RCW 

26.09.260(1) and (2) interfere with the parent's constitutional rights to 

raise his/her child. Link at 284. Under these circumstances, Mr. Marx 
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argued that the court should apply the parentally protective "best interest" 

standards of RCW 26.10.100. ld. Mr. Marx also noted that not only was 

it never demonstrated that he was an unfit parent, but it was never 

demonstrated that he was a parent at all. (CP 185-190.) 

His motion for revision was denied. (CP 200-201.) 

MOTION TO VACATE: In his motion to vacate, Mr. Marx argued 

that he was not properly served with the summons and petition, and that 

the resulting judgment was therefore void. (CP 67-71.) Mr. Marx argued 

that he has custody of his two other children, and, had he been properly 

notified of the petition and established as a parent, Ms. Clawson could 

never have met her burden to prove that he was an unfit parent. Id. Mr. 

Marx argued that a court cannot properly cut off a person's parental rights 

prior to establishing whether that person is, in fact, a parent at all. (CP 65, 

70; See also CP 79, 123-26.) Mr. Marx also argued that the judgment was 

procedurally deficient because the decree references a parenting plan that 

was signed by the court on January 10, 2011, but no parenting plan had 

ever been signed. (CP 67-71.) 

Ms. Clawson responded to his testimony about service, saying that her 

daughter, Ms. Hunter, had announced that she was pregnant to her family 

during dinner at Christmas of 2009, and that Mr. Marx had been there to 

hear it. (CP 86.) She also testified that after Ms. Hunter had given birth to 

Appellant's Brief - Page 12 THE LA W OFFICE OF JULIE C. WATTS, PLLC 
505 W. Riverside Ave., Suite 400 

Spokane, WA 99201 
(509) 703-4725 



Kaitlyn, "Bill was called the next day to let him know that Janelle had the 

baby, and he hung up the phone." (CP 86.) Ms. Clawson did not testify 

that she had called Mr. Marx, however, and Mr. Marx formally objected to 

this hearsay statement through his Motion to Strike. (CP 130.) The trial 

court declined to rule on this motion saying instead: 

"I noted for myself there was some potential hearsay. 
think I can sort that out. I don't want to waste half an hour 
this morning talking about hearsay. We all know what it is 
when we see it, I hope. 

(1 RP 3.) 

Ms. Clawson argued that Mr. Marx had been properly served and that 

Corey Clawson's Return of Service "speaks for itself." (CP 87.) 

Interestingly, Corey Clawson's girlfriend, Danielle Bergeson, filed a 

declaration discussing her relationship with KaitIyn and detailing how she 

and Corey had driven KaitIyn to visitation with Mr. Marx on several 

occasions, but Corey Clawson did not file any declaration even though the 

question of whether he had properly served Mr. Marx was at the heart of 

the dispute. (CP 103.) Ms. Clawson argued that Mr. Marx had waived his 

due process rights by not appearing in the case. (CP 100.) 

Mr. Marx replied and testified that it would be impossible for Ms. 

Hunter to have announced that she was pregnant with Kaitlyn on 

Christmas Day since Ms. Hunter gave birth on August 25, 2010 after 35 
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weeks gestation, which would have required her to have conceived 

Kaitlyn within a day or two of her supposed announcement. (CP 106; See 

also CP 183-84.) This was not disputed by Ms. Clawson. Mr. Marx also 

argued that it was unfair that Ms. Clawson was attempting to shift the 

burden to prove parentage on him when he was never served with notice 

of the CPS or dependency actions in 2010, either. (CP 108.) 

Mr. Marx' motion to vacate was denied. (CP 133-34.) 

Mr. Marx filed a motion for reconsideration. (CP 136-45.) Primarily, 

he disputed the trial court's finding that Mr. Marx knew he was the father 

of Kaitlyn and the trial court's failure to rule on whether paternity must be 

established prior to the entry of a default judgment in a nonparental 

custody matter. Id. 

Mr. Marx disputed the trial court's conclusion that he had had a duty 

to respond to a petition for nonparental custody in which he had no 

apparent interest at stake and for which he had not been properly served. 

In doing so, he argued, the trial court improperly shifted the burden from 

Ms. Clawson to Mr. Marx. (CP 144-45.) He argued that the trial court's 

conclusion that Mr. Marx should have defended against the nonparental 

custody petition by arguing that he was not the father is not reasonable, 

because the correct response to a petition for nonparental custody is not 

that a person is not a parent, but that a person is not an unfit parent. (ld.) 
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A person is not obligated to defend their parental fitness when that person 

is not a parent. 

His motion for reconsideration was denied. (CP 206-210.) 

Mr. Marx appealed. 

V. ARGUMENT 

A. 	 The trial court abused its discretion when it applied the wrong 
legal standard to deny Mr. Marx' motion to vacate the default 
nonparental custody decree and when it made determinations on 
the credibility of the witnesses without an evidentiary hearing. 

STANDARD OF REVIEW: A trial court's decision to grant or deny a 

motion to vacate a default judgment is generally reviewed for abuse of 

discretion; however, a court has a nondiscretionary duty to vacate a void 

judgment. Allstate v. Khani, 75 Wn.App. 317, 323, 877 P.2d 724 (1994). 

Whether a trial court erred by failing to hold an evidentiary hearing on an 

issue of fact that can only be resolved by determining the credibility of the 

witnesses is reviewed for abuse of discretion. Woodruff v. Spence, 76 

Wn.App. 207, 210, 883 P.2d 936 (1994). "A trial court abuses its 

discretion only when its decision is manifestly unreasonable or based on 

untenable grounds or reasons." State v. Kaiser, 161 Wn.App. 705, 726, 

254 P.3d 850 (2011), citing State ex reI. Caroll v. Junker, 79 Wn.2d 12, 

26, 482 P.2d 775 (1971). "A discretionary decision rests on 'untenable 

grounds' or is based on 'untenable reasons' if the trial court relies on 
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unsupported facts or applies the wrong legal standard; the court's decision 

is 'manifestly unreasonable' if 'the court, despite applying the correct 

legal standard to the supported facts, adopts a view 'that no reasonable 

person would take.'" Mayer v. Sto Indus., Inc., 156 Wn.2d 677, 684, 132 

P.3d 115 (2006), quoting State v. Rohrich, 149 Wn.2d 647, 654, 71 P.3d 

638 (2003.) 

VOID JUDGMENT: "Proper service of the summons and complaint is 

a prerequisite to the court obtaining jurisdiction over a party, and a 

judgment entered without such jurisdiction is void." Woodrl!ff at 209; 

emphasis added. Personal service of a summons and complaint is required 

by state statute, and these documents must be served together. CR 4; 

RCW 4.28.080. A motion to vacate a void judgment under CR 60(b)(5) 

may be brought at any time after entry of judgment. Khani at 323. 

Motions to vacate under CR 60(b)(5) are not barred by the 'reasonable 

time' or the I-year requirement of CR 60(b), and void judgments may be 

vacated regardless of the lapse of time. Khan; at 323-24. Because a 

motion to vacate a void judgment can be made at any time, a trial court 

errs by finding that such a motion was not brought within a reasonable 

time. Khani at 324. Further, a trial court's finding that a litigant had 

actual notice of the default judgment through other means is irrelevant. 

Khani at 324-35. A party will not be deemed to have waived the right to 
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challenge a default judgment that is void for lack of personal jurisdiction 

merely because time has passed since the jUdgment was entered; under 

such circumstances, the trial court must vacate that judgment and has no 

discretion to do otherwise. Khan; at 326-27. 

During the hearing on Mr. Marx' motion to vacate, the trial court 

concluded: 

It's hard to know where to start. It's unreasonable for 
someone who absolutely knew these proceedings were 
going on to wait three years to say I didn't get one of the 
pieces of paper, albeit an important piece of paper, the 
summons, years ago. Rule 60 is intended to provide 
certainty. 

We have a child who has been with grandma since she was 
an infant. He has known for several years that he's the 
father, or probably was the father. He knew that 
proceedings were going on. Yes, he got papers. He didn't 
do anything. He didn't do anything. So the remedy here is 
going to have to be down the hall initially for the adequate 
cause. You talk, Ms. Hoover, a little bit about best interest 
of this child. This has to go to a hearing on the merits. 
Under Rule 60, it's been too long to vacate. It's not a 
reasonable period of time. And I don't find it believable 
that he didn't get the Summons along with the rest of the 
papers. Even if he didn't, there has just been too much 
time that's gone by. 

(l RP 17-18.) 

In its Order Denying Reconsideration, determined without argument, 

the trial court wrote: 

On May 5, 2014, this Court entered An Order Denying 

Motion to Vacate Nonparental Custody Decree and 
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Findings Entered February 2, 2011. This Court found that 
Mr. Marx was properly served, and that even if there were 
flaws in the service (which the Court cannot find) there is 
no doubt that he knew ofKaitlyn 's existence, he knew he 
was the named father ofKait/yn and that he did nothing to 
avail himself of the court proceedings or participate. 
Further, he waited several years to bring this motion to 
vacate. 

(CP 209; emphasis added.) 

The trial court's conclusion that it did not matter whether Mr. Marx 

was properly served because "there has just been too much time that's 

gone by," and its later comments that Mr. Marx's actual notice cured any 

deficiency in the service demonstrates, in both instances, that the trial 

court did not apply the proper legal standard in evaluating Mr. Marx' 

claim that the nonparental custody decree in this matter is void for lack of 

personal jurisdiction. The trial court abused its discretion when it denied 

Mr. Marx's motion to vacate pursuant to an application of the wrong legal 

standard. Mayer at 684. 

EVIDENTIARY HEARING: In Woodruff v. Spence, the plaintiff, 

Woodruff, filed an affidavit of service showing that the defendant, Spence, 

had been personally served. Woodruffat 208. Spence moved for relief 

from the judgment, filing his affidavit that he had never been served. [d. 

This Court held that: 

An affidavit of service is presumptively correct, and the 
challenging party bears the burden of showing improper

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