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

Legal Argument 

Motion to Vacate 

The Appellant's brief accurately discusses Judge Eitzen's rulings 

and citations thereto. ( Appellant's brief, page 17-18) However, Appellant 

mischaracterizes the content. Judge Eitzen made it clear that she found 

Mr. Marx was properly served and had actual notice of the proceedings for 

nonparental custody. 
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Mr. Marx has never contended he was not served. He admits he 

was served with nonparental custody papers by Corey Clawson. He now 

claims he was not served with a summons. 

In the Woodruff case cited by Appellant, there was a dispute 

whether service even occurred. Specifically, the pleadings were alleged to 

have been left with a person of suitable age and discretion. Woodruffv. 

Spence, 88 Wn. App. 566. 1987. Further, in Woodruffv. Spence, there 

was a dispute whether Mr. Spence himself had actually received the 

papers or whether they were given to a third party. Id at 567. 

In the Woodruffv. Spence case that was the predecessor to the one 

cited by Appellant, Mr. Spence contended he was in Bellingham at the 

time he was alleged to have been served in Renton. Woodruffv. Spence, 

76 Wn. App. 207 1994. A declaration of Mr. Spence's son was filed 

contending that no process server had come to the residence on the date in 

question. Id at 210. 

In the instant case, there is no dispute that service occurred and 

once again, Mr. Marx admits to receiving the non-parental custody papers. 

Mr. Marx contended some of the papers he received were whited out or 

faded and that he was not served with a summons. Mr. Marx actually has 

never filed copies of the papers he was served with, but contends three 

years later specifics with regards to the papers served. Mr. Marx 
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contended he was served "with a couple of papers, stapled together." (CP 

58) He somehow, three years later, is contending he was not served with a 

"summons. " 

The Court was able to evaluate the credibility and did not abuse its 

discretion in not conducting an evidentiary hearing. It is of note that Mr. 

Marx never requested an evidentiary hearing and raises this issue for the 

first time on appeal. 

Al~@tiQ_nr~'lH~t;~yiQlruKm_Qf c_QnstillitjQn'lLrigb~jn appJ k'ltiQI] of 

2~Q9 .2Jl_Q (nandmJQl'Hmlli!rentfllc!llitogY-9rdeJ~ 

Chapter 26.10 RCW sets forth the procedure for nonparental 

actions for child custody. A nonparental custody petition is available in 

two circumstances: (1) the child is not in the custody of one of its parents 

or (2) the petitioner alleges neither parent is a suitable custodian. RCW 

26.10.030(1) ; RCW 26.1 0.032(1). If a motion for child custody 

establishes "adequate cause for hearing the motion," the court will set a 

show cause hearing. RCW 26.10.032(2). The petition can be granted if it 

is in the best interests of the child to do so. RCW 26.1 0.100. 

Unsurprisingly, the statute also makes provision for modification 

of nonparental custody orders. "The court shall hear and review petitions 

for modifications of a parenting plan, custody order, visitation order, or 
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other order governing the residence of a child ... pursuant to chapter 26.09 

RCW." RCW 26.1 0.190( 1) (partial). 

Once again. a party seeking modification proceeds by submitting 

an affidavit alleging facts and the court, upon determining that "adequate 

cause" exists, shall set a show cause hearing. RCW 26.10.200. 

The modification standards of chapter 26.09 RCW referenced by 

RCW 26.1 0.190( 1) are found in RCW 26.09.260. In part, subsection (1) 

provides that the court shall not modify a prior custody decree or a 

parenting plan unless it finds, upon the basis of facts that have arisen since 

the prior decree or plan or that were unknown to the court at the time of 

the prior decree or plan, that a substantial change has occurred in the 

circumstances of the child or nonmoving party and that the modification is 

in the best interest of the child and is necessary to serve the best interests 

of the child. RCW 26.09.260( 1). 

(2) In applying these standards, the court shall retain the residential 
schedule established by the decree or parenting plan unless: 

(a) The parents agree to the modification; 

(b) The child has been integrated into the family of the petitioner with the 
consent of the other parent in substantial deviation from the parenting 
plan; 

(c) The child's present environment is detrimental to the child's physical, 
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mental, or emotional health and the harm likely to be caused by a change 
of environment is outweighed by the advantage of a change to the child. 

RCW 26.09.260(2) (partial). Thus, moditication is available when a 
substantial change in circumstances and the best interests of the child 
require it, and either (a) the parents agree. 

Legislative policy is in favor of finality of custody determinations. 

E.g., In re Marriage o/Thompson, 32 Wn. App. 418,421,647 P.2d 1049 

( 1982) (dissolution statutes seek to (1) maximize tinality of custody 

awards to avoid repeated litigation of custody issues, (2) prevent "ping

pong" custody litigation, and (3) preserve • basic policy of custodial 

continuity); In re Marriage of Roorda, 25 Wn. App. 849, 851, 611 P .2d 

794 (1980) ("strong presumption" in statutes and case law in favor of 

custodial continuity and against modification). The legislature, likewise, 

has stated that one of its policies behind the custody statutes is to limit 

disruption to the children: "Further, the best interest of the child is 

ordinarily served when the existing pattern of interaction between a parent 

and child is altered only to the extent necessitated by the changed 

relationship of the parents or as required to protect the child from physical, 

mental, or emotional harm." RCW 26.09.002 (partial). This policy is 

critically important to our construction of the statute. RCW 26.10 

The plain meaning of a statute is discernable by examining 

everything the legislature has said in the statute itself and any related 
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statutes that reveallegisJative intent regarding the provision at issue. 

Cornhusker Cas. Ins. Co. v. Kachman, 165 Wn.2d 404, 409, 198 P.3d 505 

(2008). The meaning of words in a statute is not determined from those 

words alone but from all the terms and provisions of the act as they relate 

to " , "the subject of the legislation, the nature of the act, the general 

object to be accomplished and consequences that would result from 

construing the particular statute in one way or another." Burns v. City of 

Seattle, 161 Wn.2d 129, 146, 164 P.3d 475 (2007) (quoting State v. Krall, 

125 Wn.2d 146,148,881 P.2d 1040 (1994) (quoting State v. Huntzinger, 

92 Wn.2d 128, 133,594 P.2d 917 (1979))). 

If a statute is susceptible to more than one reasonable 

interpretation, it is considered ambiguous. Wingert v. Yellow Freight Sys., 

Inc., 146 Wn.2d 841, 852, 50 P.3d 256 (2002). However, a statute is not 

ambiguous merely because we may conceive of different interpretations. 

State v. Tili, 139 Wn.2d 107, 115,985 P.2d 365 (1999). 

The statute for modifying a nonparental custody decree is 

unambiguous. 

The Appellant relies on Custody ofT.L. for their claim that that the 

Court violated Mr. Mark's parental rights. See Link v. Link, 165 Wn. 

App. 268, 2011. This is a misunderstanding of Link. 

In Link, Ms. Link agreed to a temporary placement of the child 
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with her mother. There were no restrictions on Tia Link's contacts with 

her child and she continued to exercise time with her child, including 

every other weekend, alternating visits on holidays and a month in the 

summer ld at 272. The child in Link had been in her mother's care 

from birth to age 6, when she ran into problems with substance abuse. 

By contrast, Mr. Marx never had the child in his care He was 

afforded only supervised residential time. Mr. Marx delayed exercising 

his supervised residential time. There was also a hearing on adequate 

cause set in the instant case when no such hearing was set in Link. 

To accept the position of Appellant, any parent who failed to 

respond to a nonparental custody action could come to Court at any time 

and seek custody of their child without having to meet the thresholds of 

the modification parenting plan statute. This would set the absurd result 

of a parent, knowing they would lose a nonparental custody action, doing 

nothing and allow themselves to be defaulted then return to Court at a later 

date and claim there was never a contested hearing on the issue of 

unfitness so the adequate cause rules do not apply. 

Appellant next contends that the Court could not enter a 

nonparental custody order as Appellant had not yet been legally 

established to be the father. 

This position is absurd. Mr. Marx was on notice and told that Ms. 
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Hunter was pregnant with this child. Mr. Marx was made aware that 

Kaitlyn was born. Mr. Marx never sought to file a paternity action to 

establish himself as the legal father to the child. Mr. Marx was served with 

a nonparental custody action identifying him as the possible father to the 

child. 

To accept Mr. Marx's theory, Ms. Clawson would have filed an 

action and not identified him as the possible father, and claim to not know 

who a possible biological father was. Presuming such a sequence of 

events was to occur, Mr. Marx, ifhe eventually tiled an action to establish 

himself as the father, would protest that Ms. Clawson was aware he was 

the biological father to the child and failed to serve him or disclose he was 

a possible father to the child. He would then seek to vacate the tinal orders 

due to a necessary party not having been served. 

Let us apply a scenario. Let's say Mr. Marx was incarcerated at the 

time he was served with a nonparental custody action. Let us further 

presume Mr. Marx, while injail for assault of a child, was defaulted. Let 

us further assume Mr. Marx was released from jail 10 years later when the 

child was 11. Under Mr. Marx's theory, the nonparental custody order is 

void as unconstitutional and not binding because Ms. Clawson did not 

bring an action to establish Mr. Marx as the biological father of the child. 

Let us apply another scenario. Let us presume Ms. Clawson filed 
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an action contending she was a de facto parent to Kaitlyn. Let us further 

presume that Mr. Marx had yet to be established as the father to the child 

when he was served with a de facto parent action. Let us further presume 

Mr. Marx failed to respond to the action and was defaulted on a de facto 

parent action. To accept the theory of Mr. Marx, the de facto parent order 

would not be binding on him. 

Conclusion 

Mr. Marx was properly served with the nonparental custody action. 

He chose not to respond to the action and as a result, the child was placed 

in the custody of Ms. Clawson. The orders were entered after a hearing on 

adequate cause occurred and a determination was made by a court 

commissioner. 

Kaitlyn Hunter is not some inanimate object that can be uprooted 

when Mr. Marx decides he wants to be involved in the life of the child. 

The Respondent requests the Court affirm the trial Court. 
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May 9, 2015 

Matthew Dudley, #24088 
104 S. Freya, Ste 120A 
White Flag Building 
Spokane, WA 99202 
509-534-9180